ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COWM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
February 6, 2003
11: 00 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghil |
Representative Peggy W1 son
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representative Les Gara
Representative Mary Kapsner

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 19
"An Act relating to appropriations for operating expenses for
primary and secondary public education; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 26

"An Act relating to the base student allocation used in the
formula for state funding of public education; and providing for
an effective date.™

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 19

SHORT TI TLE: EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG
SPONSOR(S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0036 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)

01/21/03 0036 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/21/03 0036 (H EDU, HES, FIN

01/21/03 0036 (H REFERRED TO EDUCATI ON

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- February 6, 2003



02/ 04/ 03 (H EDU AT 11:00 AM CAPI TOL 124
02/ 04/ 03 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

02/ 06/ 03 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 26

SHORT TITLE: | NCREASE EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) STEVENS

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/10/03)

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H EDU, HES, FIN

01/ 21/ 03 0038 (H REFERRED TO EDUCATI ON

02/ 04/ 03 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 04/ 03 (H -- Meeting Canceled --

02/ 06/ 03 (H EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 19 and HB 26, explained
the purpose and intent of this legislation, and answered
questions with respect to the nerits of the bills.

EDDY JEANS, Manager

School Finance and Facilities Section

Educati on Support Services

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnment

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent's position and answered questions on HB 19 and
HB 26.

LARRY W GET, Executive Director

Public Affairs Division

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provi ded the Anchorage School District's
position and answered questions on HB 19 and HB 26.

JENNI E HAMMOND

Ni ki ski, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 19 and HB 26.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2003



CAROL HAKKI NEN
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 19 and HB 26.

DONNA PETERSON, Superi nt endent

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided the Kenai School District's
position and answered questions on HB 19 and HB 26.

M LDRED LI NK
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 26

ANNE Kl LKENNY
Wasil | a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 26

ROBERT DOYLE, Interim Chief School Adm nistrator

Mat anuska- Susi t na School District

Wasi |l | a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided the Matanuska-Susitna Schoo
District's position and answered questions on HB 26.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-5, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R CARL GATTO called the House Special Conmmttee on Education
nmeeting to order at 11:00 a.m Representatives Gatto, Seaton,
Wl f, and Gara were present at the call to order.
Representatives Coghill, WIson, and Kapsner arrived as the
neeting was in progress.

HB 19- EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

[ Cont ai ns di scussi on of HB 26]

Nunber 0108

CHAI R GATTO announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 19, "An Act relating to appropriations for

operating expenses for primary and secondary public education;
and providing for an effective date.”

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- February 6, 2003



CHAIR GATTO infornmed nenbers that he expected to hear a nunber
of bills on education funding because of the conplexity of the
i ssue.

Nunber 0192

CHAIR GATTO noted for the record that Representatives Kapsner
Coghill, and WIlson had joined the committee.

Nunber 0346

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 19, explained that the primary goal of this legislation is
to allow school districts to know how much funding they wll

receive for the next school year by April 1. He told the
commttee that school districts are required to submt funding
requests to municipal governnments by May 1 of each year. In

many instances, the |egislature has not yet passed the operating
budget by then, and it is very difficult for school districts
and nuni ci pal governments to put together a financial plan.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS shared his experience as the president of
the Kodiak Island School District, where a reduction in state
funding required the district to do serious cuts in the budget.
As a result, the district was forced to give pink slips to all
of the newy hired teachers. He said it was a terrible
situation for the teachers and the district. Wile the district
staff felt that in the fall there would be an adequate nunber of
students necessary to justify rehiring them the district could
not guarantee enpl oynent.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS pointed out that this is a problem in
many areas of the country. He shared his daughter's experience
as a teacher in the Seattle School D strict, where the

adm ni stration has msplaced $30 nmillion. |In this case, all the
new teachers have been told that they will be |et go; however,
they were also told if they waited around, on the first day of
school they probably will have their jobs.

Nunmber 0576

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS went on to say that HB 19 solves these
kinds of problenms in tw ways. Section 1 requires the governor

to submt a separate appropriation bill to the legislature for
public elenmentary and secondary schools before the fourth day of
each regul ar session. It also requires the legislature to pass

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- February 6, 2003



and transmit to the governor a bill to fund education for the
succeedi ng fiscal year

Number 0599

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said Section 2 anends the provision in
the Executive Budget Act to reflect t hat a separate
appropriation bill for education funding nust be submtted by
the governor as part of the budget package. He noted that this
bill in no way prevents the legislature from appropriating
additional funding to the foundation formula after the April 1
deadline, and in no way discourages the funding of Learning
Qpportunity Gants (LOGs). Representative Stevens addressed the
issue that the districts mght fare better if the legislature
waits wuntil the end-of-session negotiations, when possible
additional funding nay be available from the Constitutional
Budget Reserve (CBR) account. He told the commttee that while
that may be true, it is also true that the CBR has |ess and |ess
funds avail abl e. He enphasized the inportance of providing
districts and nunicipalities with early funding information to
assist themin their budget processes.

Number 0709

REPRESENTATI VE GARA thanked Representative Stevens for his
efforts to provide a solution to school districts and
municipalities in their budgetary planning. Representative Gara
shared his concern about a problemwith this plan in years when

there are shortfalls in funding. He offered an exanple where
school districts and nunicipalities have taken action based on
information provided to themin April, only to find at the end

of session that additional funding has been appropriated from
the CBR. Since the districts have already taken action based on
the information received in April, they now have to revisit the
i ssue. He said he thinks this legislation may conplicate the
districts' budgetary process.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said districts have told him they are nore
interested in adequate funding than tinmely funding. Once the
adequate funding issue has been resolved, he believes the
districts would be nore confortable having an appropriation
deadline. He asked Representative Stevens for his thoughts.

Number 0906

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS agreed wth Representative Gara that
adequate funding is inportant, and that the effect of additiona

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- February 6, 2003



funds fromthe CBR [is to require the districts to revisit the

budgetary process]. He pointed out how fortunate Alaska is to
have another funding source, since many states |ike Oegon, for
exanple, have no additional funding sources. Representati ve

Stevens also nentioned the problem rural governnments face when
they are already at the cap in funding and cannot appropriate
any nore noney to help fund education. He told the commttee he
thinks it is inmportant to have a discussion about I|ong-term
financing of education when the CBR is gone. He stated that
while it maybe be premature now, it may not be in a couple of
years.

Number 1007

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that |ast year there were discussions
about forward-fundi ng education. VWiile initially the districts
showed an interest in seeing this legislation pass, they were
nore concerned with adequate funding, so the bill did not pass.
She asked where the school districts stand on this |egislation.

Nunmber 1058

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that he does not think the schoo
districts have changed their positions on adequate funding or
early funding. He said he believes districts think if they wait
until the end of session, they may have nore funds appropriated.
Representative Stevens said he does not dispute that prem se at
all, but considering the seriousness of the situation, he
believes it is inportant to address the early funding issue.

Number 1090

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON told the conmittee that years ago there
was a safeguard in place to assist districts when enroll nment
dropped between the tinme they made their budget and the
begi nning of the school year. In some cases the districts have
signed contracts with tenured teachers, then have had no funds
to continue enploynent even though the district nust provide the
same services. Representative WIson asked if Representative
Stevens would consider including a safety valve in this
| egislation for not only tenured teachers, but also newy hired
teachers, when districts face a drop in enrollnent.

Number 1197

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said Kenai Peninsula School District is
faced with a problem simlar to what Representative WIson

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- February 6, 2003



descri bed. They just laid off 55 teachers, not only new
teachers, but tenured teachers as well, and elimnated the
| anguage program He asked Representative Stevens if he sees
any other negative effects on the districts' budget process if
early funding of education were provided, other than the hope
that waiting until the end of session wll result in greater
f unds.

Nunber 1340

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he does not know of any downside in
early funding of education, wth the exception of the one
Representative Seaton nention. He said he believes this
| egislation would provide districts with valuable information
that would allow for careful planning, and it would be a real
advantage for the boroughs as well. He told the conmittee the
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent staff is available
to address further questions on this issue.

Nunmber 1390

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON sai d one suggestion he received that would
address the districts' problemin providing their budgets to the
muni ci pal governnents [on May 1] would be to change the
statutory deadline. However, he noted that doing so would not
address the teacher retention problem

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS agreed that he does not think it would
sol ve the probl em of teacher retention either.

Nunber 1446

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked Representative Stevens to coment on
his willingness to address inflation-proofing of the foundation
formula first, and then follow that piece of legislation wth
his early funding of education bill. He pointed out that in two
out of every three years the state falls behind the rate of
inflation in education funding.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that he would be supportive of
inflation-proofing the foundation formla. He said the next
bill on the calendar [HB 26] wll deal wth the foundation
formula and the issue of noving noney from Learning Qpportunity
Grants (LOGs) into the formula.

Nunber 1546

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- February 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked, if the legislature were to try to
inflation-proof the fund every second year when there is an
el ection, whether legislators would actually, by statute, be
trying to "buy" the next |egislature. He further questioned
whether it mght be necessary to have a constitutional anendnent
to inflation-proof the foundation fornula by |aw.

Number 1575

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that Representative Seaton could
be right about the process necessary to inflation-proof the
foundation formula, but that is not the intent of his bill.
Representative Stevens did conmment that by inflation-proofing
the fornula, [this legislation] wuld be affecting future
| egi sl ati on.

Nunmber 1598

CHAIR GATTO responded that |egislatures always bind future
| egi sl ati on. It is inpossible not to proceed that way, or the
| egi sl ature woul d have to start funding from zero.

Nunmber 1605

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked what other variables conme into play
after the April deadline. He asked if the April 1 date was
specifically selected to be inline with the districts.

Nunber 1644

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that the date was selected to
allow tinme for legislation to be passed, for the districts and
boroughs to be funded, and for comrunities to deal wth the
budget .

Nunber 1657

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL conmented that once a date is selected
for required action, that will be the target date. He also said
that he believes the legislature has stayed well wthin the
| evel s of inflation in education funding. He said he believes

he could make a case for that if the conmttee were to | ook at
overal | spending on educati on.

Number 1690

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- February 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said over the years he has heard, through
his service on the school board, a concern that funding is
falling further behind. Districts' costs are going up faster
than the anmount of noney received. \Wether a district receives
| ocal contributions or not, all the districts are in agreenent
that they are falling behind and need sone sort of relief. He
told the commttee there needs to be sone discussion of whether
to do it as inflation-proofing or, as suggested here, in an
i ncreased dollar amount [referring to HB 26]. If it is done
that way, there certainly will be a |l ot of questions.

The commttee took an at-ease from1l1l:25 a.m to 11:40 a.m
Number 1808

EDDY JEANS, Manager, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and Early

Devel opnent, testified in support of HB 19. He told the
commttee the purpose of this bill is to allow municipalities
and school districts to know what their education foundation
funding is going to be for the wupcomng year, in a tinely
manner . He reiterated that school districts have to submt

their operating budget to the nmunicipalities by My 1st. Oten
the legislature has not passed the foundation funding at that
point in tinme, and so districts are noving along w thout know ng
what is going to happen. M. Jeans told the commttee that the
foundati on-funding program has been fully funded since 1987.
Districts have been able to nove forward know ng that.

Nunber 1880

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noted that nany education budget itens
dovetail wth the Departnment of Health and Social services
(DHSS) budget itens. He asked M. Jeans if he sees any

difficulty if the health and social services budget changes and
how t hat m ght inpact the education budget.

Nunber 1922

MR. JEANS replied that he prepares the education budget for
school s. He said that what happens after the budget cones to
the legislature, and is heard by various committees, is not

sonet hi ng he could comrent on.

Nunmber 1935

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- February 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he sees a real problem wth possible
budgetary inpacts on the education budget based on what happens
to the DHSS budget because of the many services provided through
DHSS. Representative Coghill cautioned the commttee that it
could have a significant inmpact on prograns such as childcare,
or many of the other prograns that dovetail with the education
budget. Even if the inpact is not felt the first year, it could
be felt a year later. He asked M. Jeans if he saw this as a
pr obl em

MR. JEANS replied that it would not be a problem
Number 1969

CHAI R GATTO stated that this is a very conplicated issue that
i npacts 53 school districts. He said all 53 school districts
are asking for wvarious things and he believes M. Jeans

understanding of the issues is credible and val ued. He asked
M. Jeans if he has anything he would like to bring to the
commttee's attention or a particular issue he thinks the
commttee should wunderstand as a nmmjor question or ngjor
pr obl em Representative Gatto asked if he could tell the
committee what is the |east understood concept by the people who
are not working on the budget, but who are sinply the recipients
of the budget.

Number 2025

MR. JEANS responded that there is not one particular issue that
he could put his finger on; however, he told the comrttee he
woul d be doing a presentation on the foundation fornmula. He
said that it is scheduled for February 13, and that he hopes the
commttee will attend. M. Jeans said the presentation is very
i nf ormati onal and he wi | | have material s t hat t he
Representatives can take back to their offices which wll assist
them in answering just about any question from nenbers’
constituents. He explained that he has been doing this
presentation for a while, so he knows the foundation formla
inside and out. M. Jeans said he hopes he can help the
commttee review the process and answer questions.

Nunber 2072
CHAIR GATTO replied that he wunderstands there are only two
peopl e who know the foundation formula inside and out, and that

M. Jeans is one of those individuals. He said the commttee
will be relying on himto take them through the process.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- February 6, 2003



Number 2096

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said that through this legislation, the
commttee is trying to solve a problem but questioned if it
really is that big of an issue. He asked M. Jeans if the
departnment will be able to translate the budget information fast
enough to actually address this problem

Nunber 2117

MR. JEANS replied that this bill sinply requires the |egislature
to make an appropriation for the foundation program earlier on
in the session. He said the legislature will have these nunbers
wel | before this  bill requires legislators to make a
determ nati on of what that funding | evel should be.

MR. JEANS did point out one problemwth the question of notice

of non-retention of teachers. He said wunder the current
statute, districts are required to provide notice of non-
retention to teachers by March 15. If for sonme reason the
| egi sl ature under f unded t he f oundati on pr ogr am this
l egislation's required date of funding, April 1, still cones
after the cutoff date of notice of non-retention. He told the

commttee they should | ook at this issue nore closely.

MR. JEANS told the commttee when he worked with Representatives
Stevens on this issue last year, it was understood that the
| egislation was sinply an effort to assist |local schoo
districts and nunicipalities in their budgeting process by
allowing them to know what the state intended to put forward
t hrough the foundati on program

Nunber 2189

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER asked if it is politically realistic to
expect the legislature to put out a budget by WMirch 15 or

April 1.
Number 2215

MR. JEANS replied that he did not know if that is possible. He
said he knows that if the date is noved to an earlier tinme, the

inplication would be that the legislature wll make an
appropriation for education within days or weeks of the tine
they walk in the door. He said he does not believe that is
r easonabl e. He said he thinks it 1is inportant to have a

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- February 6, 2003



di scussion about it. M. Jeans said he brought this issue up
because he wanted the conmttee to be aware of the fact that
this piece of legislation does not address the teacher non-
retention issue. He said the committee may want to | ook at
ot her mechani sns to address that issue.

Nunber 2233

CHAIR GATTO said the way he understands it, it is trading one
set of problens for another. On the one hand, the finance
personnel receiving the noney are saying they would |ike to know
how much they will be getting sooner, and on the other hand, the
fi nance personnel on the other side are saying,” W cannot tel
you until |ater because we do not know how nuch funding will be
avail able.™ He asked M. Jeans if that is an accurate

assessnment of the problem

MR. JEANS replied that what he believes Chair Gatto is referring
to is the overall state budget process, and he is reluctant to
comment on that.

Number 2299

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked for M. Jeans to clarify the earlier
coorment he nmade concerning full funding of the foundation
formul a since the 1980s. He questioned whether full funding for
the formula included the cost of inflation. Representative Gara
asked if what he really nmeant was that the base nunbers entered
into the foundation programwere fully funded.

MR. JEANS replied that Representative Gara is correct. He told
the commttee the state has fully funded the foundation program
at the level of statutory requirement, and that |evel does not
account for inflation during that tinme period.

Nunber 2347

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked when the nunbers would be avail abl e
for the finance subcommttee to work on the foundati on formnul a.

Nunmber 2366

MR. JEANS replied that the nunbers are available the first day
of session.

Nunber 2374

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- February 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if M. Jeans knew of any potenti al
problenms in changing the statutory date of notice of teacher
non-retention to April 1. He questioned whether there is any
particul ar reason for the March 15 date.

MR. JEANS said he is not sure the why the March 15 date is in
statute. He told the commttee he would have to confer with the
commi ssioner to see if there is a problemin changing the date.

Nunber 2408

CHAI R GATTO said noving the date has a spin-off effect on |oca
contributions, since local contributions are entirely dependent
upon the amount of noney the districts get fromthe state.

Number 2419

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked M. Jeans if he sees a problem if
appropriations to the foundation fornmula are provided a nonth
earlier. She asked if he knew where the school districts would
fall in this scenario. Representative WIlson told the commttee
she thinks they would be very happy to have that information
earlier so they could go to the local comrunity with their
proposed budget. She said she believes the districts would be
happy if there were nore noney appropriated at the end of
sessi on.

MR. JEANS responded that this piece of legislation is intended
to assist local governnments with their budgeting process. He
explained to the committee that in sonme school districts there
is a provision with local governnent that if they have increased
state aid, their local contribution is reduced or adjusted,
depending on the particular circunstances. This is a problem
sone comunities wll always have to deal with, but the benefit
to early funding is that the comunities can proceed in their
budgeting process in good faith that this is a mninmm of what
they will be receiving for education.

Number 2223

LARRY WCGET, Executive Director, Public Affairs Division,
Anchorage School District, testified concerning HB 19. He
expressed his thanks to Representative Stevens for bringing
forward the issue of early funding for education for discussion.
He told the conmttee it is a topic of interest to many in
school districts across the state that are trying to nmake
deci sions on staffing and progranmm ng for the next school year.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- February 6, 2003



Number 2560

CHAIR GATTO interrupted M. Wget because static on the
tel econferencing equipnment was inpairing the reception of his
testi nony. He told M. Waget the conmttee would conme back to
him for his testinony once the technical difficulties had been
resol ved.

Number 2630

JENNI E HAMMOND, parent of students in Nikiski, testified in
favor of HB 19. She urged the conmittee to give school boards
the opportunity to know what they are receiving every year at an
earlier date to assist their planning efforts.

Nunmber 2668

CAROL HAKKI NEN, parent of two students at Kenai Hi gh School,
testified that she wanted to speak on HB 26, but would also Iike
to echo the previous testinony on HB 19. She said that it is
easier to plan a budget if +the school board has early
notification of nonies it wll be receiving. She said if
additional funds are nade available down the road, the nore the
better. She urged the commttee to address this issue soon.

Number 2711

MR  WGCET continued wth his testinony, saying that the
Anchorage School District appreciates Representative Stevens

bringing forth this bill. He said the Anchorage Schoo
District's concern is really not early funding, but adequate and
equi tabl e fundi ng of K-12 educat i on, i ncl udi ng debt

rei rthursenent on construction

MR WGET told the conmttee the Anchorage district's budget
process begins in October and Novenber when schools and
departnments submt their proposed budget for the com ng year.
He explained that they wuse guidelines put forth by the
superintendent and the board, with the board setting the upper
limts of the budget in Novenber. |In |ate Decenber and January,
the superintendent and the admi nistration spend a great deal of
tinme looking at the schools' needs and preparing a bal anced
budget to go before the board in January. He used this year's
schedul e as an exanple, saying in January the district held two
work sessions with the board, in which the admnistration laid
out the proposed budget to the board. Two public hearings were

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- February 6, 2003



held, a first and second reading during which the board
finalized the budget for the year in January. The board-adopted
budget then goes before the municipal assenbly for approval in
Mar ch. He told the commttee the district is aware of the fact

that they will not know what nonies will be received from the
| egi slature until the end of session, and they may have to
revise the budget. He shared his concern that early funding may
result in less than adequate funding for schools. He cauti oned
that |awmakers will be forced to neet the deadline established
by law, w thout having the tinme to fully consider other budget
itens that need to be addressed. He thanked the commttee for

the opportunity to testify on HB 19.
Nunmber 2854

DONNA PETERSON, Superintendent, Kenai Peninsula Borough School
District, testified that while her role prevents her from
speaking directly on the bills that are being heard today, she
would like to follow M. Wget's exanple and ask the committee
to renenber that she represents approximately 9,500 students and
1,200 enployees in 43 schools, wth wurban, rural, and renote

sites. She said she has a strong belief in the public school
system and believes if denocracy is to be preserve in our
comunities, it is inportant to cherish and value our public
school s.

M5. PETERSON said the State of Alaska is responsible for
provi ding education for its citizenry, and with that charge is
the need for appropriate and adequate funding. She told the
committee that the Kenai Peninsula school district follows all
of the rules by neeting the [70-to-30] criteria for
i nstructional expenditures. Ms. Peterson said the district has
|l ess than 5 percent admnistration costs and yet, even with the

|l ocal funding to the tune of one-third of its budget - $25
mllion - seens to be punished for being conpetent, efficient,
and frugal. The district is in crisis due to inadequate

education funding, wth absolutely no way to obtain addition
dollars other than through state funding. As an exanple of what
the district is facing [because of years of inadequate funding],
she told the commttee the status quo budget in FY 04, wthout a

single additional program is $5.2 nmillion dollars in the red.
Reductions other school districts are beginning to nmake, the
Kenai district nade five to ten years ago. In order to have a

bal anced budget, the district is laying off 56 teachers and
raising the pupil-teacher ratio by three students in classroons
t hroughout the district. |In very small schools, the district is
cutting entire prograns, and next year there wll not be a

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- February 6, 2003



single school on the peninsula, including the 13 high schools,
that wll have a full-time librarian. Musi c, physi cal
education, and vocational education classes have been cut en
masse. M. Peterson told the commttee all books and curricul um
purchases have been slashed from the budget. Extracurricul ar
travel dollars have Dbeen elim nated, and the district's
i nadequat e supply budget, which has been reduced for years, wll
take a 40 percent cut to bal ance the budget.

TAPE 03-5, SIDE B
Number 2951

M5. PETERSON asked for increased state funding. She said the
district needs a mnimm of $4,500 per student to provide an
education for Al askans. She said wth early, adequate funding
of Alaskan public school <children's needs, districts could
fulfill the promi se of the Anmerican dream She said without it,
the perilous future is upon us. She asked the commttee what
cost society is willing to pay for this shortsightedness. In
closing, Ms. Peterson said she was in a room of f-net because she
was neeting wth 24 representatives from the district's site
councils to try to figure out a solution to this problem and
asked for the commttee's help.

Nunmber 2876

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked Ms. Peterson if the 29-to-1 teacher-
to-pupil ratio was in all of Kenai's elenentary schools or just
the |l arger elenmentary schools.

CHAIR GATTO said that M. Peterson was already [offline]. He
clarified that she was speaking of only the larger elenentary
school s.

Nunmber 2838

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF comended the Kenai Peni nsul a school
district for having the highest test scores of a charter schoo
in Alaska, and noted that +the district has the |owest
adm ni strative costs throughout the state. He said two of his
children go to that charter school

Nunber 2816
CHAI R GATTO asked if there were any nore questions. He then

told the commttee that he would be talking to the governor's
office and the departnent that deals with finance [Ofice of

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- February 6, 2003



Managenent & Budget], to provide sone additional information.
Chair Gatto announced that he will hold the bill until a later
dat e.

The conmittee took an at-ease from12:10 p.m to 12:15 p. m

HB 26- | NCREASE EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 19]

CHAI R GATTO announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 26 "An Act relating to the base student
allocation used in the fornmula for state funding of public
education; and providing for an effective date.”

Number 2762

REPRESENTATI VE GARY STEVENS, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor
of HB 26, testified that this legislation pertains to allocation
of the foundation formula. He told the commttee one of the
nost inportant things the legislature does is fund education.
He said he appreciates the comrents from the superintendent of
schools from Kenai Peninsula [during the hearing on HB 19],
because he believes she touched on many of the issues that this
bill is intended to address.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said he believes that despite increases
in the foundation fornula in the past two |egislative sessions,

public education has still taken a trenendous hit because of
escal ating expenses |ike salary increases, higher fuel prices,
and rising insurance costs. He told the commttee that

inflation over the years has had a trenendous inpact on public
school funding and the purchasing power that districts once had

has been eroded over tine. Even if the l|egislature increases
the state contribution to the 53 school districts, in many cases
it will not be enough. He pointed out that there are nore

demands on the public education system for exanple, the
i npl enentation of the high school graduation-qualifying exam
the federal governnent's "No Child Left Behind Act,” and at the
sane tinme the state is encountering trenmendous difficulties

hiring and retaining teachers and adm nistrators. He expressed
concern that the state cannot keep asking school districts to
nmeet all of these responsibilities with a budget that 1is

dw ndling, and said he believes additional funding is necessary.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS said HB 26 increases the per-student
allocation by $118, to $4,128. He told the committee the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- February 6, 2003



departnent has provided a fiscal note of about [$24 nmillion].
He said this effort is to match the anount appropriated to
public education through the Learning Qpportunity Gants [LOGs]
for the fiscal year 2003, so that at the very least, school
districts woul d receive simlar fundi ng in FY 04.
Representative Stevens reiterated his statenent that there are
few things the legislature does that are nore inportant than
adequately funding education. He told the commttee he does not

have any illusions that this noney, $24 nmllion, will solve al
of Al aska's education problens, but he told the commttee it
won't hurt and will substantially help.

Nunber 2650

CHAIR GATTO said it is inportant to note that LOGs have often
been available to the schools, and they are used each year;
however, it is noney that cannot be depended upon because it is
a grant. He asked Representative Stevens if he is correct in
t hat assunpti on.

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS agreed that [LOGs] are grants, could not
be depended upon, and did not go through the foundation formla

itself. He said there is a question of equity in the granting
process.
Nunmber 2619

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER told the comrittee a good anal ogy that
she has borrowed from Representative Croft is the difference
between a raise and a bonus. The LOGs are a bonus that soneone
cannot really depend upon, whereas the increase to the
foundation formula is a raise. A lot of the grants that canme to
the districts were one-year prograns or short-term prograns, and
required hiring tenporary staff to head those prograns. They
were not prograns that the districts could have long-term
reliance upon.

Number 2582

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the districts are not
allowed to match that [LOF noney under the cap. He said that
by handling LOGs this way, the legislature is basically reducing
the noney that local districts can fund by putting the noney in

LOGs instead of the foundation formla. Representative Seaton
told the conmttee the Kenai Peninsula Borough is at the cap and
has been at the cap for a nunber of years. The district has

been searching for multiple ways to fund busing or other itens

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- February 6, 2003



outside of the cap. He urged the commttee to consider putting
the LOGs within the formula, so that |ocal school districts that
want to can match nore noney for education

Nunmber 2486

CHAI R GATTO requested clarification on LOGs distribution. He
asked if Representative Stevens would comment on an exanple of
two students, one fromthe Anchorage School District and one the
Yukon School District. Wuld the LOG be admnistered with the
sane dollar anobunt for each student regardless of his or her
| ocation? O does the dollar anmount change through a formula
based on differences in the comunities?

Nunber 2474

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that it may be best to check with
the Departnent of Education and Early Developnent on this;
however, he said his understanding is that the LOG do not go
through the foundation formula, so the costs of distance, fuel
electricity, and hiring of teachers in the Bush are not
i ncl uded.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON told the conmttee she believes LOGs are
adm ni stered per pupil, so the schools with a ot of kids get a
| ot nore noney than the schools with fewer kids.

Number 2404

EDDY JEANS, Manager, School Finance and Facilities Section,
Educati on Support Services, Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent, responded that LOGs are distributed on a per-capita
basis, so every child gets the sane dollar anount.

Nunmber 2393

CHAI R GATTO said that makes a very large difference when it is
rolled into the fornmula, as it would then be allocated much
differently. The anmendnent to sinply roll the LOGs into the
formula makes a huge difference to a Yukon school, and no
difference to an Anchorage school, assuming the LOG are
di stributed through the fornula.

Number 2384

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Representative Stevens if the
doll ar anmpbunts of the LOGs are the sane.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- February 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that is correct. The LOGs are
the sane dollar anount and there would be no increase. Thi s
woul d just roll the LOGs into the foundation fornula.

Nunber 2345

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked Representative Stevens if it is his
intention to exclude the LOGs from the funding package [as
required in Section 2 of the bill].

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS answered in the affirmti ve.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL indicated there would be federal dollars
comng to the state for education incentives through the No
Child Left Behind Act. He said he believed the LOGs were part
of an incentive program to assist in outcone-based education,
and asked Representative Stevens if he believes if [the LOGs
systen] is a franework that the legislature wants to get rid of,
since there wll be nore noney comng from the federal
governnent for educational incentives.

Nunber 2321

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS replied that he believes LOGs are a
framework the | egislature needs to get rid of.

Number 2317

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON pointed out a chart in the bill packet
that reflects how districts would be affected. She noted that
sone schools will gain, but many schools will remain the sane.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON restated his point that rolling the LOGs
into the foundation fornula allows districts to fund education
at higher dollar anmounts because nunicipalities can then match
t hat anount.

Number 2245

MR  JEANS clarified that LOG are supplenental f undi ng,
all ocated to the Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent,
that are distributed to school districts outside the foundation
funding formula. LOGs are distributed on a per-capita basis, so
the funding is not adjusted for equalizing effects; however,
there are adjustnents within the foundation funding fornmula. He
said, as Representative Seaton has pointed out, that putting

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 20- February 6, 2003



this noney into the funding forrmula allows |ocal nunicipalities
to increase their ability to contribute |ocally.

MR. JEANS said the spreadsheet the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnment prepared for the conmttee indicates al
school districts would have an increase in the state foundation
funding if this nmoney [LOGs] is put into the state foundation
fundi ng formul a. He said if [the committee is] |ooking at how
the districts fare when the noney is in the fornula and outside
the formula, that is a different conparison that would have to
be prepared. Putting the noney into the forrmula and running
those adjustnments results in a redistribution of that noney.

Number 2161

CHAI R GATTO asked: Since each student gets the sane anount now,
if the legislature rolled the LOGs into the fornmula, would the
nunber of dollars allocated need to be increased or could the
sanme dollars be taken and sinply be reallocated according to the
formul a?

MR. JEANS replied that the total dollar anount is the sane;
however, the per-pupil amount 1is different from what was
actually allocated through the other mechanism He believes the
per-pupil allocation under the LOG was $186 per child, but as
it is put into the funding fornmula, that anount is $118 per

pupi | .
Nunber 2119

CHAIR GATTO asked, if the LOGs were nmpoved into the fornula
whet her the anount of funds the Anchorage School District
recei ves woul d be | ess.

MR. JEANS responded that by noving the noney into the funding
formula, Anchorage wll receive less noney than they are
currently receiving through the allocation under LOGs.

Number 2054
CHAI R GATTO said he thinks that it is an inportant consideration
for sone districts since it is a reduction, while for others it

is an increase.

MR. JEANS replied that Chair Gatto is correct. He told the
committee one thing they need to consider is that this funding

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -21- February 6, 2003



is being allocated for instructional progranms, and it should be
di stributed through the funding foundation formul a.

Nunber 1987

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked if he mght offer his amendnents into
di scussion before the commttee hears public coment so the
public can address his conments as wel|.

CHAIR GATTO stated that he would like to take testinony before
entertai ni ng anendnents.

Number 1979

M LDRED LINK, concerned parent from Kenai, testified that she
had never contacted her |egislators about any topic. However

that all changed the first night she went to the Kenai Central
Hi gh School neeting and received the news of the budget cuts

i npl enented by the Kenai Peninsula school district. She told
the commttee since that time she has attended all of the
neetings regarding the cuts. At the nost recent neeting they

faced the prospect of losing 56 teachers districtw de. She said
the teacher-to-student ration has been raised from 21.5 to 25.5
students, which further dilutes the quality of education the
children will receive. She told the committee her daughter
attends Kenai Central H gh School, and her first and forenost
priority has al ways been her education. M. Link said next year
Kenai Central Hi gh School is slated to |ose four teachers; while
it still is not known all of the classes that wll be lost, it
is known that loss wll be advanced English, advanced history,
and cal cul us. Calculus is now a course required by many
universities for entrance. If children are to attend good
universities and becone the next generation of |eaders from
Al aska, she believes the quality of education cannot continue to
be reduced. She told the commttee she supports raising the
al l omance per child to $4,500 per student. She said she is in
favor of whatever increase in the budget to maintain the current
| evel or inproved |evel of academ c staffing possible. Wile HB
26 does assist her district, it does not neet and certainly does
not exceed "our expectations or demands," she concl uded.

Number 1775
JENNIE HAMMOND told the commttee she currently has two snall
children in a special-education program in the district, which

is a very fine programwth small classroons. However, because
of all the budget cuts and |oss of teachers, she is concerned

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -22- February 6, 2003



that all the hard work that is going into educating children
will be lost as they get into their later years of their
school i ng. The increase of PTR [pupil-teacher ratio] and
consolidations of schools are some of the ways the school
district is trying to address the problem She said the Ni ki ski
comunity has pretty nmuch agreed that two of the schools need to
conme together to help solve the funding problens in an effort to
get sone of the prograns back. She asked the commttee to
pl ease | ook at ways to fund education at $4,500 per student.

Number 1700

CAROL HAKKINEN testified as a parent of tw students of Kenai
Central H gh School. She told the commttee that her husband
was born and raised in Kenai, and graduated from Kenai Central
Hi gh School . She said they noved back to Kenai in 1994 on a
trial basis, but what kept them there was the school district
and small community. However, with all the budget cuts they are
wondering what kind of an education the students will get. The
headlines said the community is opposed to consolidation, but
Ms. Hakkinen said she does not think that is representative of
the community. She said she is willing to seek consolidation of
schools to assure the best education for students. M. Hakkinen
said she believes schools should provide the necessary and
required classes that high school students need in order to
pursue schol arshi ps and further education at college, or if they
prefer, to start their educational training for a career. She
said she is worried about the enrollnent nunbers and hears
vari ous proposals about cutting the budget with academ cs and
extracurricular activities being at the forefront. She
expl ained that studies show extracurricular activities help a
student have a good work ethic, be organized, work harder, and
set goals. The school district neeting discussed another $2.9
mllion being whittled away from the budget, which consists of
cust odi ans, counsel ors, nur ses, and al | travel for
extracurricular [activities]. She asked why the adm nistration
is not being cut first.

Number 1498

LARRY W CGET, Executive Director, Public Affairs Division,
Anchorage School District, stated that HB 26 put forth by
Representative Stevens is a good first step toward adequate and
equitable funding of K-12 education for the com ng year. He
t hanked Representative Stevens for putting forth the bill and
told the commttee he knows it is challenging to conme up with a
final decision. School districts across the state are neeting

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -23- February 6, 2003



revenue shortfalls in their attenpt to neet the needs of their

students. In the weeks ahead, he said the committee will learn
nore about the needs of school districts, including the
Anchorage School District, which will not be funded unless new
nonies are added to the foundation fornula. This bill is a
first step in a discussion [his district] hopes will not only
result in taking existing and |apsed revenues and placing them
into the foundation formula, but also wll result in the

addition of new nonies to neet the educational challenges [the
district] has before it. M. Wget explained that in Anchorage
and throughout Al aska, there are efforts to neet the goals of
the "No Child Left Behind Act" and the quality schools

initiatives. However, if districts are to succeed in these
endeavors, they cannot rely nerely on creativity or thinking
outside the box. It will take new revenue. He said he appl auds

this first discussion about adequate and equitable funding of K-
12 educati on.

Number 1387

ANNE KI LKENNY, parent of a student, gave the commttee the
anal ogy that she wants her cake and ice cream too, and she
wants to eat it today. She said the cake she wants is an
increase in the base student allocation, the ice cream would be
the LOGs, and having it today would be to do so w thout gaining

any weight or facing the fiscal reality. She said she knows
this is an inpossible request and that she believes it is
important to have both. She told the conmttee that it is

inportant to be realistic in addressing the educational funding
needs, whether it is new revenue taxes Or new revenue sources,
which she told the conmttee she is wlling to pay. She said
she will not vote against sonebody who takes the stand to
address the fiscal problens of Al aska. She said she does not
see this bill as an increase in funding for schools, since it
does not neet the needs of the schools across the state unless
an increase is inplenented. Moving LOGs into the foundation
formula is not adequate. She said she hopes the commttee wll
i ncrease funding and maintain the LOGs program

Nunber 1241

ROBERT DOYLE, Interim Chief School Admnistrator, Matanuska-
Susitna School District, testified on behalf of the 14,200
students that the district projects wll attend school there
this fall. He told the conmttee he agrees with Anne Kil kenny
that nerely noving the existing LOGs into the fornmula as a way
to increase funding is not an increase in funding for schools.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 24- February 6, 2003



He told the commttee the spreadsheet he saw shows a net
increase, but did not reflect the net decrease for LOGs in the
Mat anuska- Susitna district. He said the district is one of
three in the state that has participated in a curriculum audit.
He also told the conmttee that he believes that the result of
adding the LOGs to the foundation fornmula would result in a net
|l oss of at |east $200,000, and that figure is before the area

cost differentials of an additional $1.4 mllion that would be
taken from a growi ng school district and noved to other schoo
districts that are not growing in student nunmbers at all. He

asked the conmttee to seriously take a l|ook at new revenue
sources for school s.

Number 1151

CHAIR GATTO asked M. Doyle, if the legislature were to nove
LOGs into the fornula, whether that would result in a net
i ncrease or decrease for the Mtanuska-Susitna district.

MR. DOYLE said he believed it would be a net decrease. He said
the LOGs program is inportant and is neeting the students
needs, as well as the No Child Left Behind program He told the
commttee the district also is planning a lot of instructionally
val i d research-based prograns for students.

Nunber 1122

CHAIR GATTO asked M. Doyle if people in the district are
commenting on additional revenue. Is that sonething people
expect, or are they just hopeful?

MR. DOYLE said the people in the valley expect the state to
stand and deliver. Education is a top priority for the state's
newly elected governor, he opined, and he thinks the comrunity
expects additional revenue for education. He told the commttee
at the present tine, the district is |looking at serious cuts,
maybe not as severe as the cuts facing Kenai. However, the
district is looking at increasing class size by two across the
district and possibly closing schools. He said the district has
simlar problens that Kenai is facing and he synpathizes wth
them but asked the conmttee not to take noney from one
district and nove it to another, or from one program and nove it
to another, wthout actually adding anything to the anount of
fundi ng for education.

Nunber 1020

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -25- February 6, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, which read
[original punctuation provided]:

Page One, line 6: $4,303 [$4010].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA commended Representative Stevens for his
many years of being a passionate voice for adequate and
appropriate increases in school funding. He told the conmttee
how he arrived at that nunber and provided sonme historica
background on the base student allocation process. He said that
in 1998, the legislature adopted the base student allocation
process whereby education funding, in part, was determ ned by
deci di ng how much each student should receive in state funding.
The idea then was that Al aska had fallen behind in ternms of real
dollars for education funding. Al nost every year [the
| egi sl ature] would fund education |less and |ess, and every year
| egi slators would go out and canpaign on how they believed in
strongly funding Al aska's educational system Yet when it cane
dowmn to it, by the end of the budget cycle, when taking into
account inflation, the l|egislature funded schools with |ess and

| ess nmoney. In 1998, the base student allocation was $3,940 per
st udent . If the state just kept up with the cost of inflation
and nothing nore, the base student allocation today should be
$4, 303. Representative Gara said he does not believe it is
asking too nmuch of parents, educators, and those interested in
provi ding Alaskan kids with an adequate education. He said he
believes the state should be putting as nmuch into education this
year as it did in 1998, and not |ess. He summarized that this

is the basis for his anendnent.
Nunber 0707

REPRESENTATI VE GARA told the committee that the |egislature has
to make priorities in funding. |If education is to be funded the
way education should be funded, [l|egislators] have to prioritize
and decide not to fund things that are naybe not as inportant as
educat i on. He said there have been proposals over the last few
nonths to engage in sone sorts of corporate subsidies for roads
to private mnes, and to particular areas where businesses are
| ocat ed. Representative Gara encouraged the conmttee to | ook
at whet her those things get funded before Al aska's schools. He
urged the commttee to look at the plan to extend the railroad
line or spend $50 mllion toward the Anchorage and Kenai area

intertie upgrades. He pointed out that in terns of cost, the
intertie upgrade has proven to be far nore expensive than the
benefits that are produced. Representative Gara said he

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 26- February 6, 2003



believes that the people in all districts think education is a
priority.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA offered to support another blue ribbon panel
if menbers are not happy with the bipartisan A+ report produced
several years ago by the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent . At a mninmum he urged the conmttee to keep up
with the cost of inflation. He said the proposal that he is
putting forth in the anendnent to increase the base student
allocation to $4,303 he believes is supported by the nenbers of
his caucus and he hopes this will not be a partisan issue since
both Denocrats and Republicans have run on platforns that
support better and stronger schools for Al aska' s children.

Nunmber 0614
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL objected to the anendnent.

CHAI R GATTO asked Representative Gara what the additional cost
woul d be to the state budget if the anmendnent were adopt ed.

REPRESENTATIVE GARA replied that he thought it would be
sonewhere in the area of $50 or $60 mllion.

Nunber 0548

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS stated that he appreciates the anendnent
by Representative Gara, but his concern is that this bill's
purpose is to bring sone equity to the situation, and to nove
the LOGs into the foundation formula. He told the committee
that the district that wuld be nopbst affected, Anchorage,
supports noving the LOG into the foundation fornula. He

reiterated Representative Seaton's point that this would
increase the cap that municipalities can contribute to education
f undi ng. He told the conmttee he is opposed to the anendnent
because he believes it would be the "kiss of death” to the bill
It would never get through the |egislature, because the fiscal
note would increase from $24 mllion to $60 mllion. He said he
hopes the committee will place any other major changes to the
foundation formula in a separate bill

Nunber 0427
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that he is in favor of increasing

funding to education; however, he wants to keep these issues
separate and will be opposing the anmendnent for that reason. He

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -27- February 6, 2003



told the commttee he would like to see the discussion about
noving the LOGs into the foundation formula go forward.

Nunmber 0368
REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said this is a difficult anmendnent,

because everyone wants nore funding for education; however, she
agrees with the sponsor that this amendnent would be the "kiss

of death" for HB 26. Representative WIson expressed her
concern with LOGs because she believes they provide an unfair
advantage to |arger schools. She said the fornula for schools
is set in place so it is a fair way to distribute noney to the
school s. She told the commttee her preference is to do away
with LOG and add increased funding to the districts on a year-
by-year basis wthout any guarantees. However, she told the
commttee she does understand what Representative Stevens is
trying to acconplish, and, t her ef ore, wi || oppose this
amendnent .

Nunmber 0254

REPRESENTATI VE GARA spoke on the point of LOGs, saying he agrees
with nost of the menbers of the commttee that LOGs should be
rolled into the base student allocation; however, he told the

commttee without this anmendnent the bill's results will be less
state funding for schools this year. Representative Gara told
the commttee he believes it is essential to keep up with the
cost of inflation. HB 26, as it is presently witten, |eaves

education funding behind the cost of inflation. He also pointed
out that coments by the Anchorage School District were that
they did not mnd rolling the LOG into the base student
all ocation, but they also requested additional nonies.

Nunber 0137

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF stated that he is also opposed to the
proposed anendnent, saying he wants the issues to be kept
separat e. He told the commttee he believes everyone in the
building supports funding education, but a $60 nmllion
appropriation is too nuch.

Nunmber 0032
A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gara and Kapsner
voted in favor of Anmendnent 1. Representatives Coghill, W] son,

Wl f, Seaton, and Gatto voted against it. Theref ore, Amendnent
1 failed by a vote of 2-5.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 28- February 6, 2003



TAPE 03-6, SIDE A

The commttee took an at-ease from1:00 p.m to 1:01 p. m

Nunber 0036

REPRESENTATI VE GARA noved to adopt Anmendnent 2 as foll ows:
Page One, line 6: $4,228 [$4010].

REPRESENTATI VE GARA explained that a bipartisan panel famliar
wi th educational issues cane out with a report called the "A+

Report." That report |ooked at the shortcom ngs of [Al aska's]
educati onal system and recomrended a base student allocation of
$4,228 for this fiscal year. Representative Gara told the

commttee the panel assunmed a 1.5 percent rate of inflation;
however, the state actually had 2 percent and 4 percent rates of
inflation in the last two years. He offered Amendnent 2 as an
alternative to Anmendnent 1.

Number 0143

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL objected to the anendnent. He told the
committee the sponsor of the anendnment has provided this nunber

to ensure "the LOGs nunber is taken care of." He rem nded the
commttee that this [LOGs] is the first transitional issue and
he thinks the conmmttee should stay focused on that. He said
there are other commttees of referral where there will be nore
debate, especially when the legislation cones before the House
Fi nance Conmmi ttee. He told the commttee he does not want to
di sregard what the sponsor of this anmendnment is bringing up, but
t hat he t hi nks this | egi sl ation shoul d of fer better

di scretionary power "under the formula funding narrowy defined
in the LOCGs."

Nunber 0215

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER comented on Representative Coghill's
st at enent , and told the commttee she <can understand his

concerns. However, she feels that since this comittee's
primary concern is the education of Alaska' s children, she
believes when the bill noves out of the Special Conmttee on

Education it should reflect what is best for kids in ternms of
their education, not necessarily what 1is best financially.
Representative Kapsner said the House Finance Commttee does
have the ability to anend it [HB 26] or go back the sponsor's

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -29- February 6, 2003



original bill, but since she is not on the House Finance
Commttee, she is in full support of this anmendnent.

Nunber 0271

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that he understands both sides of
this issue; however, he asked the commttee to deal with LOGs
separately, since there will be other bills before the commttee
to deal with the base foundation fornmula increases. He said he
wi |l not be supporting the amendnent.

Number 0381

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Gara and Kapsner
voted in favor of Anmendnent 2. Representatives Coghill, W] son,
Wl f, Seaton, and Gatto voted against it. Therefore, Amendnent

2 failed by a vote of 2-5.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if M. Jeans from the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent could provide the commttee with
a breakdown of how districts wuld fare positively and
negatively with respect to the LOG' noving into the foundation
f or mul a.

CHAI R GATTO noted that his district would | ose noney if the LOGs

were rolled into the foundation fornula. Chair Gatto stated
that the committee will hold the bill until a |later date.
ADJ OQURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the
Speci al Commttee on Education neeting was adjourned at
1:10 p. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 30- February 6, 2003



